
            
 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

                                  BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

October 19, 2023 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 

NOTICE OF ATTENDANCE BY THE PUBLIC OF 

THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

VIA TELECONFERENCING FOR OCTOBER 19, 2023 ONLY 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Sec. 54953(f)(1)(A) - (C), the Regular Board Meeting of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District may be attended by the public via teleconferencing, as follows: 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89062051126 
 

Meeting ID: 890 6205 1126 
 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,   89062051126# US (San Jose) 
+14086380968,   89062051126# US (San Jose) 

 

OPEN SESSION: 

 

1. APPOINTMENT OF AD HOC COMMITTEE FOR THE PURPOSE OF SALARY NEGOTIATIONS WITH 
THE GENERAL MANAGER 

 

CLOSED SESSION: 

 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS – pursuant to  Government Code Section 54957.6   
Agency designated representatives: The Ad Hoc Committee appointed and announced by Megan Clark, 
President of the Board during the Open Session prior to this Closed Session. Unrepresented employee: 
CURTIS PAXTION, GENERAL MANAGER.  
 
 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:30 PM 

4:40 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89062051126


October 19, 2023 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

OPEN SESSION: 

 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 

 

 

3.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for October 5, 2023 

B. Approve the Warrant List for October 19, 2023 

C. Approve Board Compensation for September 2023 

D. Approve Robards attending SDLF Leadership Academy October 22-25, 2023 Santa Rosa 

E. Approve Murray attending SDLF Leadership Academy November 3-6, 2024 San Rafael 

F. Approve Murray attending  CASA and CWEA Innovate Technology Seminar November 29, 2023 
Oakland, CA 

G. Approve Annual Capital Facilities Charge Accounting and Reporting 

H. Approve Ratification of Unrepresented Employee Contract Amendments 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through F 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through H. 

 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

2. Organizational Health Survey/Assessment (FutureSense) – verbal 

 

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,  

Other Reports  
 

2. FORD 
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee, 

 2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,  
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

3. MURRAY 
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,  

 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 
 
 

5:15 PM 

 

5:00 PM 

5:05 PM 

5:45  PM 

 

2



October 19, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

8. ADJOURNMENT

  FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS NOVEMBER 2 AND NOVEMBER 16, 2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before October 16, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on October 19, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: October 16, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting.

6:00  PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:15  PM 

6:05  PM 

3



10/19/2023 

Appointment of Ad Hoc Committee for Purpose of Salary 
Negotiations with the General Manager 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting

 Verbal Report

□ Presentation

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



 

 
 

 

10/19/2023 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

 Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM A 

5



 

 
 

 

10/19/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\10192023\ASR Capital Facilities Charge Accounting and Reporting.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2022 

Re: Capital Facilities Charge Accounting and Reporting 
 

Item Type:   Consent X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Receive report to comply with reporting provisions of Government Code Section 66013. 

BACKGROUND: 
California Government Code Section 66013 was substantially amended in 1998 which imposed 
more stringent accounting and reporting requirements for fees collected for sewer connection and 
capacity charges. Capacity charge is defined as a charge for facilities in existence at the time a 
charge is imposed or charges for new facilities to be constructed in the future that are of benefit to 
the person or property being charged. 
 
The accounting requirements stipulate that the District deposit its Capital Facilities Charges (CFC) 
and related interest earned into a separate Connection Fees account and to account for those 
charges in a manner to avoid commingling with other monies of the District and to expend those 
charges only for the purposes for which the charges were collected. The law also requires that this 
information simply be made available to the public within 180 days after the end of the fiscal year. 
 
Pursuant to the District’s Ordinance Code, Title 2, Chapter 1, the District charges a Capital 
Facilities Charge for each Equivalent Sewer Unit as outlined in Section 907 for new connections 
and for the additions or alterations of existing structures. The District identifies projects which 
expand existing capacity and allocates funding from the Capital Facilities Charge fund as part of 
the annual budget. 
 
Attached for information only is a copy of the District's annual Capital Facilities Charge Revenue 
and Expenditure Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and the adopted Restricted Funds 
Budget for 2023-2024, identifying anticipated use of funds for public improvements, of which there 
is none, that fully comply with the accounting and reporting provisions of Government Code 
Section 66013. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:  None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

Item Number______3G________ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

 

35

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
 Capital Facilities Funded Project Detail

 July 2022 through June 2023
CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGE - REVENUE
5025 · Money Mrkt-Connection Fee-9510    -   BEGINNING BALANCE July 1, 2022 587,687.42

Date Type Memo Debit Credit Balance

5025 · Money Mrkt-Connection Fee-9510
07/31/2022 Deposit Interest 67.71 587,755.13
08/09/2022 Payment Talus, LLC - Connection Fee 18,664.80 606,419.93
08/09/2022 Payment Dorman Associates Inc.- Connection Fee 2,064.60 608,484.53
08/09/2022 Payment 400 Nova Albion Way- Connection Fee 333.00 608,817.53
08/19/2022 Payment Bank of Marin Northgate - Connection Fee 3,330.00 612,147.53
08/31/2022 Deposit Interest 79.07 612,226.60
09/12/2022 Payment 100 El Prado Ave Laundromat - Connection Fe 31,968.00 644,194.60
09/21/2022 Payment 16 Galleon Way - Connection Fee 2,664.00 646,858.60
09/30/2022 Deposit Interest 75.35 646,933.95
10/31/2022 Deposit Interest 79.67 647,013.62
11/18/2022 Payment 11 Roosevelt Ave - Connection Fee 3,550.00 651,063.62
11/30/2022 Deposit Interest 77.30 650,640.92
12/12/2022 Payment Congregation Rodef Sholom - Connection Fee 36,565.00 687,205.92
12/12/2022 Payment Congregation Rodef Sholom - Connection Fee 840.00 688,045.92
12/31/2022 Deposit Interest 80.07 688,125.99
01/31/2023 Deposit Interest 87.48 688,213.47
02/17/2023 Payment 840 Montecillo Rd. - Connection Fee 409.00 688,622.47
02/17/2023 Payment 311 Las Flores Ave - Connection Fee 248.50 688,870.97
02/28/2023 Deposit Interest 76.58 688,947.55
03/13/2023 Payment 412 Las Gallinas Ave - Connection Fee 6,544.00 695,491.55
03/13/2023 Payment 4460 Redwood Hwy - Connection Fee 818.00 696,309.55
03/13/2023 Payment 505 Vendola Dr. - Connection Fee 818.00 697,127.55
03/13/2023 Payment Devcon Construction - Connection Fee 2,863.00 699,990.55
03/27/2023 Payment 3950 Civic Center Dr.- Connection Fee 1,636.00 701,626.55
03/27/2023 Payment 754 Las Colindas Rd - Connection Fee 5,317.00 706,943.55
03/29/2023 Payment 70 Skyview Terrace - Connection Fee 2,045.00 708,988.55
03/31/2023 Payment 260 Northgate Dr. 1,227.00 710,215.55
03/31/2023 Deposit Interest 366.79 710,582.34
04/30/2023 Deposit Interest 547.73 711,130.07
05/10/2023 Payment 635 Montecillo Rd. 409.00 711,539.07
05/30/2023 Payment 22 Leona Dr. 1,092.00 712,631.07
05/31/2023 Deposit Interest 646.58 713,277.65
06/12/2023 Payment Talus, LLC 74,659.00 787,936.65
06/12/2023 Payment 22 Leona Dr. 9,336.00 797,272.65
06/30/2023 Deposit Interest 630.91 797,903.56

Total 5025 · Money Mrkt-Connection Fee-9510 210,216.14 0.00 797,903.56

TOTAL - ENDING BALANCE June 30 , 2023 * 210,216.14 0.00 797,903.56

* Annex and Capital Facilities Charges revenue in FY 2022-23 207,665.02
* Interest on Connection Fees revenue in FY 2022-23 2,551.12

210,216.14

CAPACITY RELATED EXPENSES FOR FY 2022-23
There were no capacity related expenses used towards capacity related projects in FY 2022-23.  The balance of $797,903.56 is
available to expand existing capacity through projects identified during the Capital Outlay Budget process or by Board action.

Q:\ACCOUNTING\AUDIT\Audit 2022-23\CFC\CFC Activity FY202336



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24
Actual Adopted Projected Adopted

Budget End of Year Budget

Restricted Funds

Capacity / Capital Facilities / Connection Fee Fund (#5025)
Beginning Balance 316,998$       587,687$               587,687$         985,449$        

Plus: Additions 470,689       1,741,536            397,761           872,019        
Less: Use of Funds (200,000)     -                           -                     -                   

Ending Balance 587,687$       2,329,223$            985,449$         1,857,468$     
Purpose: To pay for collection system and plant capacity improvements to serve new connections.

Captains Cove Fund (#5019)
Beginning Balance 17,266$         1,498$                   1,498$             9,178$            

Plus: Additions 48,025         16,025                 16,003             16,010          
Less: Use of Funds (63,793)       (12,400)               (8,324)             (24,800)        

Ending Balance 1,498$           5,123$                   9,178$             388$               
Purpose: Special assessment fees in and class account 350 expenses out. 

Marin Lagoon Fund (#5005)
Beginning Balance 84,595$         15,978$                 15,978$           17,462$          

Plus: Additions 74,372         21,106                 24,787             24,780          

Less: Use of Funds (1) (142,989)     (107,700)             (23,304)           (26,600)        
Ending Balance 15,978$         (70,616)$                17,462$           15,642$          

Purpose: Special assessment fees in and class account 360 expenses out. 

(1) Prior Year Capital Expenditures for Marin Lagoon Pump Station #1 to be recovered over multiple years as balance insufficient

    to cover entire cost of project.   

Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement Fund (#5028) (2)

Beginning Balance - - - -$                
Plus: Additions -                  -                           -                     22,348          
Less: Use of Funds -                  -                           -                     -                   

Ending Balance - - -$                     22,348$          
Purpose: Capital repair or replacement costs at the Recycled Water Treatment Facility.  Fund shall not exceed $500K.

(2) Established May 2023 with first annual contribution by MMWD and LGVSD to be made in 2023-24.

    To be funded by LGVSD and MMWD by multiplying the total annual recycled water Operating & Maintenance producing costs by 10%. 
    

Total Restricted Fund Reserve Funding: 935,157$        

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
RESTRICTED FUNDS

ADOPTED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 30, 2023

Last update:9/11/2023 1 of 137



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\10192023\ASR Amendments to Employment Agreements.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: October 19, 2023 

Re: Ratification of Amendments to Management and Unpresented Employment 
Agreements 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to ratify amendments to employment agreements for the following management and 

unrepresented employees: 

• Administrative/Financial Specialist Schultz 

• Administrative Services Manager McDonald 

• Collections/Safety/Maintenance Manager Pease 

• District Engineer Cortez 

• Plant Manager Liebmann 

 
BACKGROUND   
A successor Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the District and Operating 
Engineers Local 3 (OE3) was approved on September 7, 2023 and entered into on September 
18, 2023 which provided salary increases effective the first full pay period following July 1 in the 
years 2023, 2024, and 2025 for all represented employees.   
 
Current management and unpresented Employment Agreements were approved on September 
7, 2023 and were entered into on September 8, 2023 which provided for salary increases 
effective the pay period that encompasses July 1 in the years 2023, 2024, and 2025. 
 
The difference in terms between “first full pay period” and “pay period that encompasses” 
resulted in two additional weeks of retroactive pay for the above management and unpresented 
employees.      
 
It is the wish of the management and unrepresented employees to amend their Employment 
Agreements to align with the salary terms in the MOU, to be retroactive to the first full pay period 
following July 1, 2023, and in subsequent years of the Employment Agreement. 
 
The General Manager has authority to execute the Amendments to Employment Agreements 
under Board Policy B-80 Authority Over Personnel. 
 
 

Item Number______3H________ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

38

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\10192023\ASR Amendments to Employment Agreements.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On September 7, 2023, the Board approved the MOU between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District and OE3 and authorized the Board President to execute the MOU. 
 
On September 7, 2023, the Board approved the management and unrepresented employees 
Employment Agreements and authorized the General Manager to execute the agreements. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional cost associated with ratifying the Amendments to Employment Agreements.  
Retroactive pay adjustments resulted in $3,151.84 being returned to the District. 
 
Attachments: 

A. First Amendment to Employment Agreement – Schultz 

B. First Amendment to Employment Agreement – McDonald 

C. First Amendment to Employment Agreement – Pease 

D. First Amendment to Employment Agreement – Cortez 

E. First Amendment to Employment Agreement – Liebmann 
 
 
 
 
 

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



 

 
 

 

10/19/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4.1 

50



 

 
 

 

10/19/2023 
 

 Organizational Health Survey/Assessment (FutureSense) 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4.2 

51



 

 
 

 

10/19/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 Fleet Management 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: October 19, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

66



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\10052023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

10/19/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85


	Agenda 10192023
	1 Appointment of Ad Hoc Committee
	A Closed Session
	2 Public Comment
	3A Minutes 10052023
	3B Warrant List 10192023
	3C Board Compensation September 2023
	3D Robards SDLF Academy Request
	3E SDLF Academy 2024 Request
	3F Murray Techonolgy Seminar Request
	3G Capital Facilities Charge Accounting and Reporting
	CFC Revenue and Expense Report FY2022-23.pdf
	Activity


	3H Amendments to Employment Agreements
	4.1 General Manager Report
	4.2 Organizational Health Survey
	5 Board Member Reports
	5.3 Murray Other Reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles



